
 

 

 

 

 

 

BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

 

 

7:30 P.M.              TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 15, 2016  BOARD ROOM 

 

 

- AGENDA - 
 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

 

II. ROLL CALL 

 

III. PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

IV. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE JOINT MEETING 

OF THE ARLINGTON HEIGHTS PARK DISTRICT BOARD 

OF COMMISSIONERS AND THE BOARD OF LIBRARY 

TRUSTEES OF OCTOBER 15, 2016 (Action Item 1) 

 

V. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR BOARD 

MEETING OF OCTOBER 25, 2016 (Action Item 2) 

 

VI. REVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE PERIOD 

ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2016 (Item 3) 

 

VII. REVIEW OF THE CHECK REGISTER FOR THE PERIOD 

ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2016 (Action Item 4)  

 

VIII. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

 

IX. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 

X. NEW BUSINESS 



 

- STAFF PRESENTATION – INCREASING LIBRARY USE 

AMONG RESIDENTS LIVING IN THE SOUTHERN PART 

OF ARLINGTON HEIGHTS (Item 5)  

A presentation of an action plan for increasing use of the library 

by those living in the southern part of the Village.  

 

- APPROVAL OF FY2017 PER CAPITA GRANT 

APPLICATION (Action Item 6) 

A review of the draft Illinois State Library FY2017 Public 

Library Per Capita Grant application. 

 

XI. COMMITTEE REPORTS (As appropriate) 

 

(A)BUILDING (Trustee Unumb)  

 

(B) FINANCE (Trustee Zyck) 

     

(C) HUMAN RESOURCES (Trustee Zyck) 

 

(D) POLICY (Trustee Nelson) 

 

- LOCAL GOVERNMENT EXPENSE CONTROL ACT  

(Action Item 7) 

Introduction of Resolution 16-06 in accordance with the Local 

Government Expense Control Act and changes to Policy 1.105—

MEMBERSHP IN PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS AND 

CONFERENCE ATTENDANCE to indicate compliance with 

the Act.   

 

- STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE MEMBERS  

(Action Item 8) 

Discussion of the effectiveness of the current composition of the 

Strategic Planning Committee with respect to administrative staff 

being included as voting members.   

 

(E) STRATEGIC PLANNING (Trustee Brody Garkisch) 

 



XII. FRIENDS OF THE ARLINGTON HEIGHTS MEMORIAL 

LIBRARY (Trustee Unumb) 

  

XIII. OTHER 

 

XIV. CLOSED SESSION IN ACCORDANCE WITH 5 ILCS 120/2 

(C) (5) TO DISCUSS THE PURCHASE OR LEASE OF REAL 
PROPERTY FOR THE USE OF THE PUBLIC BODY 

 

XV. ITEM(S) FROM CLOSED SESSION FOR ACTION 

 

XVI. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

 

 

Final vote or action may be taken at the meeting on any agenda item 

subject matter listed above, unless the agenda line item specifically states 

otherwise. 

 

Individuals with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who 

require certain accommodations to allow them to observe and/or 

participate are requested to contact the library’s Business Office (phone 

847-506-2611; TTY 847-392-1119) 48 hours in advance, if possible, to 

allow for the arrangement of reasonable accommodations. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



(Action Item 1) 
 

MINUTES OF THE JOINT BOARD MEETING 
BETWEEN  

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS PARK DISTRICT 
AND  

ARLINGTON HEIGHTS MEMORIAL LIBRARY 
Arlington Lakes Golf Club 

1211 S. New Wilke Dr., Arlington Heights, IL 
October 15, 2016 

8:30 a.m. 
 
Meeting was called to order at 8:35 a.m. by Park Board President Leno. 
 
In attendance from the Arlington Heights Park District: 

Commissioners Present      Commissioners Absent 
Tim Gelinas       W. Ploger 
Myles Naughton 
Rob Nesvasil, Vice President 
Maryfran Leno, President 

 
Staff Present 
Rick Hanetho, Executive Director; Brian Meyer, Director of Recreation and Facilities; Cheryl 
Mosqueda, Director of Finance and Personnel; Division Manager of Recreation Facilities, Steve 
Neill 

 
In attendance from the Arlington Heights Library: 

Trustees Present      Trustees Absent 
Debbie Smart, President     Joan Brody Garkisch 
Deborah Nelson, Vice President/Secretary (8:57 a.m.) 
Carole Medal 
Marianthi Thanopoulos 
David Unumb 
Greg Zyck, Treasurer 

 
 Staff Present 

Jason Kuhl, Executive Director; Jeremy Andrykowski, Deputy Director; Deb Whisler, 
Communications and Marketing Director 
 

 
Library Expansion of Services: 
 
Executive Director Kuhl shared that the Library is constantly assessing and exploring ways to expand its 
reach to the people they serve.  There are no immediate plans for brick-and-mortar expansion as the 
Library continues to monitor and evaluate the changing demographics of the community.  
 
Park District Board President Leno shared the Park District interest in collaborating with the Library if 
and when expansion plans become formalized.  President Leno also shared the importance of 
collaborative planning as early as possible in the process.  As a long range planning consideration, 
President Leno suggested Frontier Park as a possible location for the library to expand services. 



Joint Board Meeting Between AHPD & AHML Minutes, October 15, 2016 Page 2 
 

Discussion continued summarizing various partnerships and collaborative efforts that have been 
successful.  Several members of both boards and staff emphasized the importance of communicating 
and messaging our joint efforts to the public.  Staff should investigate a joint branding strategy for our 
collaborative efforts. 
 
Park District Board President Leno summarized the meeting with the following: 

1. Continued focus on enhancing and expanding collaborative programming and services. 

2. Explore efforts to brand and message our partnership to expand the awareness, impact, and 

benefits to the community as a whole. 

3. Proactive communication related to opportunities to expand collaborative efforts related to 

long range planning and expansion of services for both organizations. 

4. Consider revisiting the past agreement with Historical Museum and Historical Society. 

Library Board of Trustee and President Debbie Smart shared information regarding the Library’s third 
annual One Book One Village community wide reading program. 
On behalf of the Library Board of Trustees, President Smart wished the Park District good luck as 2016 
National Gold Medal Finalist and emphasized the strong history of cooperation and collaboration 
between the two organizations. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
With no further business the meeting adjourned at 9:49 a.m. 
 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Maryfran H. Leno, President 
       Board of Commissioners 
       Arlington Heights Park District 
________________________________ 
Richard A. Hanetho, Secretary 
Board of Commissioners 
Arlington Heights Park District 
 
 _______________________ 
 Date Approved 
 



(Action Item 2) 

 

 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

OF THE ARLINGTON HEIGHTS MEMORIAL LIBRARY HELD ON TUESDAY, 

OCTOBER 25, 2016. 
 

10.16.01 A regular meeting of the Board of Library Trustees of the Arlington Heights Memorial 

Library was called to order in the Board Room of the Arlington Heights Memorial 

Library on Tuesday, October 25, 2016, at 7:30 p.m. by President Debbie Smart. 

 

10.16.02 Upon ROLL CALL, the following answered Present: Trustees Brody Garkisch, Medal, 

Nelson, Thanopoulos, Unumb, Zyck, and Smart. 

 

Absent: None. 

 

 Also present: Jason Kuhl, Executive Director; Jeremy Andrykowski, Deputy Director; 

Diane Schultz, Director of Human Resources; Michael Kelly, Director of Finance; Sarah 

Shaw, Digital Services Manager; Diane Accurso, Public Information Editor; Janet 

Moravec, Business Office Administrator; Karen Cullotta, Chicago Tribune; Jeanne M. 

Filipp, Resident. 

 

10.16.03 There was no PUBLIC COMMENT. 

 

10.16.04 Trustee Unumb moved APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR 

BOARD MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 20, 2016 (Action Item 1). Trustee Zyck 

seconded. All were in favor and the minutes were approved as submitted. 

 

10.16.05 Trustee Unumb moved APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL 

BOARD MEETING OF OCTOBER 17, 2016 (Action Item 2). Trustee Nelson 

seconded. With Trustee Brody Garkisch abstaining, all were in favor and the minutes 

were approved as amended.  

 

10.16.06 REVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 (Item 3) – Mr. Kuhl reported 75% of the year has lapsed and 

cash equivalents for September were $20,519,384; last year cash equivalents were 

$18,689,611. Real Estate Taxes received in September were just over $78,000 bringing 

the total tax revenues received to date to 98.9% of the budgeted tax revenues for the 

year. Mr. Kuhl highlighted departmental accounts of note from the Detail Budget 

Report. 

 

10.16.07 REVIEW OF THE CHECK REGISTER FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 

SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 (Action Item 4) – Mr. Kuhl provided information in response 

to trustees’ questions about individual expenditures. 

 

Trustee Unumb moved THE BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES APPROVES THE 

CHECK REGISTER DATED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016, IN THE AMOUNT OF 

$1,389,612.74. Trustee Brody Garkisch seconded. Upon ROLL CALL, the following 

answered Aye: Trustees Brody Garkisch, Medal, Nelson, Thanopoulos, Unumb, Zyck 

and Smart. Nay: none. The motion carried. 

 



 2 

10.16.08 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT – Mr. Kuhl highlighted a newly approved 

Cook County Board ordinance requiring that all employees earn sick time; installation of 

the new library sign; tween programming; District 214 Newcomer Center partnership; 

and staff involvement at the recent Illinois Library Association annual conference.  

 

10.16.09 UNFINISHED BUSINESS  

 

- AMENDED APPROVAL OF CHECK REGISTER DATED APRIL 30, 2016 

(Action Item 5) – Mr. Kuhl explained at the May meeting, the board approved the check 

register dated April 30, 2016 in the amount of $1,116,836.70. The third payroll 

disbursements that occurred on April 29, 2016 were included on the summary sheet but 

were not included in the total the board approved. An amended motion was passed with 

the corrected total.   

 

Trustee Brody Garkisch moved THE BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

APPROVES THE CHECK REGISTER DATED APRIL 30, 2016 IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $1,382,550.64 AMENDING THE ACTION TAKEN AT THE MAY 

17, 2016 MEETING AND REFLECTIVE OF THE CORRECTED TOTAL. 

Trustee Nelson seconded. Upon ROLL CALL, the following answered Aye: Trustees 

Brody Garkisch, Medal, Nelson, Thanopoulos, Unumb, Zyck and Smart. Nay: none. 

The motion carried. 

 

10.16.10 NEW BUSINESS  

 

- AUTHORIZATION TO EXTEND HOURS OF SERVICE – POLICY 5.001 

(Action Item 6) – Mr. Andrykowski explained with initial studies beginning in 2013, 

staff completed a study of customer use during the extended hours pilot. After a six-

month pilot period staff observed strong use of the library during the six additional hours 

of weekend service. Considering the observed and potential impact of the additional 

hours of direct service to the community, and considering that cost could be managed 

within the current planned budget, staff recommended the six hours be permanently 

added to Policy 5.001 Hours of Service.    

 

Trustee Medal moved THE BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES APPROVES THE 

EXTENDED WEEKEND SERVICES HOURS AND AMENDS POLICY 5.001 

HOURS OF SERVICE ACCORDINGLY. Trustee Thanopoulos seconded. All were 

in favor and the motion carried. 

 

10.16.11 COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 

(A) BUILDING (Trustee Unumb) – Trustee Unumb reported the committee did not 

meet. 

 

(B) FINANCE (Trustee Zyck) – Trustee Zyck reported the committee met most 

recently on Thursday, September 29. 

 

- PROPOSED 2016 TAX LEVY (Action Item 7) – Trustee Zyck reported the 

committee is proposing a 0% increase over the extended 2015 levy, in the amount of 

$13,830,091. The board reviewed the truth in taxation calculation which identifies how 

the library levy will be presented in the Village of Arlington Heights documentation. 



 3 

 

The Finance Committee recommends THE BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

ADOPTS THE 2016 TAX LEVY IN THE AMOUNT OF $13,830,091. No second 

was required as the motion came from committee. Upon ROLL CALL, the following 

answered aye: Trustees Brody Garkisch, Medal, Nelson, Thanopoulos, Unumb, Zyck 

and Smart. Nay: none. The motion carried. 

 

- ADOPTION OF 2017 BUDGET (Action Item 8) – Trustee Zyck reported the 

committee met on September 22 and 29 to review the budget. The 2017 budget, dated 

September 29, 2016, was reviewed by the full board at its special meeting on Monday, 

October 17.     

 

Trustee Zyck moved THE BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES ADOPTS THE 2017 

BUDGET AS PRESENTED. Trustee Nelson seconded. Upon ROLL CALL, the 

following answered Aye: Trustees Brody Garkisch, Medal, Nelson, Thanopoulos, 

Unumb, Zyck and Smart. Nay: none. The motion carried. 

 

- REPORT ON STATUS OF NON-DESIGNATED DONATIONS (Action Item 9) 
– Mr. Kuhl identified a desire to better track and utilize cash donations to the library by 

individuals and organizations. He discussed a mechanism which would allow for donated 

funds to be used and recognized more meaningfully and provide a small source of funding 

for items not typically purchased with tax dollars.  
 

After discussion, the item was referred to the Policy Committee for further review. 

 

(C) HUMAN RESOURCES (Trustee Zyck) – Trustee Zyck reported the committee 

met immediately prior to the regular October board meeting. 

 

- BEREAVEMENT AND PERSONAL LEAVE AND OVERTIME AND 

COMPENSATORY TIME POLICIES (Action Item 10) – Ms. Schultz shared 

information regarding a new law in Illinois which requires granting leave time when an 

employee’s child dies. The library was already in compliance because of how staff are 

allowed to use leave allowances; however, staff recommended the addition of language 

to Human Resources Bereavement and Personal Leave policy. The proposed new 

language was reviewed by legal counsel for Management Association.  

   

Ms. Schultz reported on changes in the Fair Labor Standards Act and the impact on 

timekeeping and pay cycles for employees. Staff recommended one change of substance 

to the Overtime and Compensatory Time policy, to limit the window in which comp time 

may be taken from the current 90 days to 30 days. A number of recommended changes 

to the policy were purely to simplify language.   

 

The Human Resources Committee recommends THE BOARD OF LIBRARY 

TRUSTEES APPROVES POLICIES BEREAVEMENT AND PERSONAL 

LEAVE AND OVERTIME AND COMPENSATORY TIME AS REVISED.  No 

second was required as the motion came from committee. All were in favor and the 

motion carried. 

 

(D) POLICY – (Trustee Nelson) – Trustee Nelson reported the committee met twice in 

September. 



 4 

 

- AVAILABILITY OF BOARD MATERIALS TO THE PUBLIC (Action Item 11) 

– Trustee Nelson reported the committee discussed ways to increase the availability of 

board materials to members of the public. As part of those discussions many options 

were weighed and the practices of the other public bodies in the Village were 

considered. After much discussion, the committee brought forward the following 

recommendations: 

 

 That an enhanced agenda containing a brief synopsis of each item replace the 

current agenda format for all board and committee meetings 

 That hard copies of board packets be available for the public at meetings 

 That electronic copies of board packets be posted on the library’s website the day 

after meetings or as soon as practical 

 That board highlights summarizing the actions taken at the board meeting be 

posted on the library’s website the day after meetings or as soon as practical 

 

The Policy Committee recommends THE BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

AUTHORIZE STAFF TO TAKE THE FOLLOWING STEPS TO INCREASE 

THE PUBLIC AVAILABILITY OF BOARD MATERIALS: 1) REPLACE THE 

CURRENT AGENDA TEMPLATE WITH AN ENHANCED AGENDA THAT 

INCLUDES A SHORT SYNOPSIS OF EACH ITEM FOR BOARD AND 

COMMITTEE MEETINGS; 2) MAKE HARD COPIES OF BOARD PACKETS 

AVAILABLE TO MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC WHO ATTEND BOARD 

MEETINGS; 3) POST BOARD PACKETS ONLINE FOLLOWING EACH 

BOARD MEETING; AND 4) POST ONLINE AND IN THE BUILDING BOARD 

HIGHLIGHTS THAT SUMMARIZE ACTIONS TAKEN BY THE BOARD 

FOLLOWING EACH BOARD MEETING. ITEMS MAY BE EXCLUDED FROM 

THESE PUBLIC POSTINGS AT THE DISCRETION OF THE EXECUTIVE 

DIRECTOR IN CONSULTATION WITH THE PRESIDENT OF THE BOARD 

OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES AND THE LIBRARY’S LEGAL COUNSEL AS 

NECESSARY. No second was required as the motion came from committee.  

 

After discussion, it was recommended to amend the motion to remove the availability of 

hard copies of board packets at meetings. 

 

Trustee Unumb moved TO AMEND THE RECOMMENDED MOTION TO 

EXCLUDE “2) MAKE HARD COPIES OF BOARD PACKETS AVAILABLE TO 

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC WHO ATTEND BOARD MEETINGS;”.  Trustee 

Zyck seconded. The following answered Aye: Trustees Nelson, Thanopoulos, Unumb, 

Zyck and Smart. Nay: Trustees Brody Garkisch and Medal. The motion carried. 

 

The amended motion recommends THE BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES 

AUTHORIZE STAFF TO TAKE THE FOLLOWING STEPS TO INCREASE 

THE PUBLIC AVAILABILITY OF BOARD MATERIALS: 1) REPLACE THE 

CURRENT AGENDA TEMPLATE WITH AN ENHANCED AGENDA THAT 

INCLUDES A SHORT SYNOPSIS OF EACH ITEM FOR BOARD AND 

COMMITTEE MEETINGS; 2) POST BOARD PACKETS ONLINE 

FOLLOWING EACH BOARD MEETING; AND 3) POST ONLINE AND IN THE 

BUILDING BOARD HIGHLIGHTS THAT SUMMARIZE ACTIONS TAKEN BY 

THE BOARD FOLLOWING EACH BOARD MEETING. ITEMS MAY BE 



 5 

EXCLUDED FROM THESE PUBLIC POSTINGS AT THE DISCRETION OF 

THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR IN CONSULTATION WITH THE PRESIDENT 

OF THE BOARD OF LIBRARY TRUSTEES AND THE LIBRARY’S LEGAL 

COUNSEL AS NECESSARY. All were in favor and the motion carried.  

 

(E) STRATEGIC PLANNING (Trustee Brody Garkisch) – Trustee Brody Garkisch 

reported the committee met on Friday, October 14. 

 

- STRATEGIC VISIONING (Action Item 12) – Trustee Brody Garkisch reported the 

committee and select staff met to participate in “strategic visioning” by brainstorming 

ideas for initiatives surrounding the library’s Vision and Priorities. Ideas were to focus 

on very big, longer term ideas that could be worked toward over a number of years. Of 

particular interest were ideas that would help equalize library services geographically 

and across all demographics of Arlington Heights. Next steps will be to review and study 

the ideas discussed and work with the committee to determine which should become an 

area of focus.  

 

10.16.12 FRIENDS OF THE ARLINGTON HEIGHTS MEMORIAL LIBRARY (Trustee 

Unumb) – Trustee Unumb reported the Friends of the Library (FOL) Fantastic Fall Used 

Book Sale is scheduled for October 29 and 30; the Friends discussed the purchase of 

books bags for sales; and the Friends have $114,067 in available funds. 

 

10.16.13 OTHER  

 

- President Smart stated that she would like to remember with thanks past library 

board member and long-time Friends of the Library volunteer Phyllis Deming Parlee for 

her many years of service to the library and the Arlington Heights community.  

 

- A report was given on the 2016 Illinois Library Association annual conference, held 

October 18-20 in Rosemont.  

 

 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Trustee Unumb moved ADJOURNMENT. 

Trustee Nelson seconded. All were in favor and the meeting was adjourned at 9:14 p.m. 

 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Deborah A. Nelson, Vice President/Secretary 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Janet Moravec, Recorder 























































November 15, 2016 (Action Item 4)
 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

CHECK REGISTER
ARLINGTON HEIGHTS MEMORIAL LIBRARY

October 31, 2016
 

FUND TOTALS

Fund Number Fund Name Fund Total

291 General Fund - Library $308,596.27
491 Capital Projects Fund - Library $18,544.90

Total Disbursements $327,141.17

Payrolls Paid
10/14/2016 $264,896.54
10/28/2016 $269,022.36

$533,918.90

Journal Entry Expenditures by Village On Behalf Of the Library

10/31/2016 Group Insurance $89,550.00
10/31/2016 IMRF $63,060.94
10/31/2016 Social Security $32,028.03
10/31/2016 Medicare $7,490.41

$192,129.38

Voided Checks
Check No. Date Payee Amount
72997 5/17/2016 Gabriela Rojek $190.00  
73180 6/21/2016 Pam Schwarting $110.15

 

 

` ($300.15)

Total Disbursed $1,052,889.30

H:\ACCOUNTING\Finance Minutes\Board Summary\Board Summary\Board Summary CY 2016 - edit November 2016 meeting

















































November 15, 2016

Account Amount Description Staff

Check #1450-AHML - Petty Cash

Petty Cash 10/3/2016 6401-3202 6.59$           Program Events M Papanastassiou

6401-2203 46.44$         Travel/Training M Young

6401-2203 30.22$         Travel/Training T Dantis

6401-2203 17.59$         Travel/Training T Dantis

Petty Cash 10/10/2016 6020-2203 15.00$         Travel/Training T Scuderi

6401-3202 21.93$         Program Events S Hollars

6401-2203 7.34$           Travel/Training A Son

6401-3202 22.32$         Program Events A Son

6401-2203 48.92$         Travel/Training A Son

6401-2203 25.60$         Travel/Training A Belford

6401-3202 24.72$         Program Events A Belford

6401-3202 44.73$         Program Events L Priest

6450-2203 6.04$           Travel/Training D Olichwier

6001-2203 28.00$         Travel/Training J Moravec

6001-2203 9.00$           Travel/Training D Halpin
6001-3299 17.98$         Employee ReimbursibleD Halpin

Petty Cash 10/17/2016 6420-2203 15.00$         Travel/Training S Meyer

6420-2203 34.97$         Travel/Training S Meyer

6420-2203 15.00$         Travel/Training F Prisby

6401-3201 9.98$           Program Supplies P Sparreo

6401-3202 25.51$         Program Events S Hollars

6401-3202 35.52$         Program Events P Sparreo

6001-3272 43.93$         Special Events K McCoy

6420-2203 7.02$           Travel/Training T Scallon

6405-2203 11.12$         Travel/Training K Zsupan

6405-3202 10.00$         Program Events K Zsupan

6001-3272 49.84$         Special Events K McCoy

6405-3202 18.99$         Program Events J Kittredge

Petty Cash 10/24/2016 6001-2203 45.00$         Travel/Training D Smart

6401-3202 39.89$         Program Events S Hill

6401-3201 10.99$         Program Supplies S Hill

6401-3202 46.94$         Program Events M Vela

Petty Cash 10/31/2016 6001-3272 38.21$         Special Events K McCoy

6001-2203 28.00$         Travel/Training J Moravec

6002-3201 40.41$         Program Supplies A Harder

6021-2203 46.55$         Travel/Training C Cutinello

6020-2203 13.50$         Travel/Training G Sanchez

6020-2203 12.50$         Travel/Training L Vargas

6405-3202 46.90$         Program Events S Distel

6001-2203 44.96$         Travel/Training D Halpin

6401-2203 4.32$           Travel/Training D Napravnik

6401-3202 19.49$         Program Events D Napravnik

6401-2203 4.32$           Travel/Training D Napravnik

6405-2203 9.99$           Travel/Training S Distel

6401-3202 39.90$         Program Events A Belford

6420-3202 39.96$         Program Events K McCoy

6001-2203 45.00$         Travel/Training J Kuhl

6405-2203 3.56$           Travel/Training K Zsupan

6001-2203 14.58$         Travel/Training K Zsupan

6001-2203 23.64$         Travel/Training B Trzop

6001-2203 30.00$         Travel/Training M Jasinski

1,297.91$    

           Arlington Heights Memorial Library

                    Special Funds Summary

                                10/31/2016



November 15, 2016

  

CARDHOLDER ACCOUNT AMOUNT VENDOR  DESCRIPTION

  

J. Kuhl 489-90-00 (55.11)$             AMEX Cash back rebate Other Income/Rebate

6001-2203 351.72$            Kansas City Marriott Downtown Housing for ULC Conference for J. Kuhl/ Kansas City - October 2016

M. Driskell 6010-3032 199.00$            OptimalWorkshop.com Monthly subscription to Optimal Workshop website testing tools

6010-3032 11.99$              Netflix.com Netflix monthly subscription for Digital Services Roku devices

6010-3032 19.99$              PlanningPod.com Planning Pod monthly account subscription - Sept.

6001-2202 100.00$            Innovative Users Group Renewal of Institutional Membership

6010-3185 122.53$            Armodilo Display Solutions iPad adapters for Armodilo mounts for KW tech bar

6010-3185 3.30$                 Armodilo Display Solutions Foreign Transaction Fee

6010-3032 25.00$              GitHub.com Monthly renewal of Git-Hub subscription for IT

6010-3185 49.95$              Amazon Wireless display adapter for Microsoft Surface

6010-3185 26.97$              Amazon Mini DisplayPort to HDMI adapter

6010-3185 185.00$            Amazon Room alert temp monitoring device for server room

6010-3185 15.49$              Amazon SanDisk Cruzer 64GB flash drive for ESL

6010-3185 24.99$              PayPal Replacement mobile hotspot for bookmobile

6010-3185 39.99$              PayPal Replacement power supply for server

6010-3185 73.54$              Amazon USB flash drives for IT

6010-3185 25.45$              Amazon DigiOcean flash drives for library staff (pack of 5)

6010-2005 54.10$              PayPal Monthly payflow pro renewal for website ecommerce

6010-2005 10.00$              Mechanical Turk Pay per click website testing survey

6010-2005 20.00$              Mechanical Turk Pay per click website testing survey

6010-3032 50.00$              Trello.com Monthly Trello renewal for DSG

6010-3032 11.99$              Netflix.com Netflix monthly subscription for Digital Services Roku devices

6010-3232 10.61$              Microsoft Store Minecraft license for Oculus computer

6010-3032 105.19$            Apple Store apple developer program membership renewal

6010-3032 9.99$                 Spotify.com Monthly Spotify renewal for Teens

6010-3030 175.48$            Amazon Samsung MLT-D203L toner for public printer

6010-3032 11.99$              Netflix.com Netflix monthly subscription for Digital Services Roku devices

J. Moravec 6020-2111 43.09$              Testequipmentdepot.com Circuit Breaker Finder

6002-3005 144.00$            Poppin.com 24-Dark Gray Pen Cups

6020-2111 114.97$            Safe Circuits Inc. Circuit Breaker 

6401-3202 67.20$              Jet.com TAB -Programs

6002-3005 520.00$            iStockPhoto.com 60 Credits Online Usage

6003-3201 63.56$              Party City Paper Goods for Stop by for Pie

6020-2203 125.00$            ISS/Interclean Registration for Trade Show Oct. 25-28 2016

6020-2111 336.40$            Webstaurantstore.com Waste Containers

6010-3030 97.75$              eBay Epson Backlight Film 

6401-3005 23.40$              JoAnn Red Sticky Tape

C. Bell 6470-3205 146.00$            Inkntech.com 6-Disc DVD Cases

6001-3005 39.00$              Walmart .com USB Flash Drive

6470-3205 146.00$            Inkntech.com 6-Disc DVD Cases (Charged again)

6470-3205 (146.00)$           Inkntech.com Refund

M. Shultz 6470-3275 87.00$              Tugg.com AV Mtls

6470-3275 43.35$              Carly Rae Jepsen AV Mtls

6470-3280 2.33$                 Barnes & Noble Books

6470-3280 (46.61)$             Barnes & Noble Books

6470-3275 180.52$            BBC America shop AV Mtls

6470-3275 156.41$            BBC America shop AV Mtls

6470-3295 7.99$                 F+W Consumers Periodicals

6470-3275 25.95$              Spiritual Cinema AV Mtls

6470-3275 8.63$                 Living Waters Publications AV Mtls

6470-3275 24.30$              Kunaki LLC AV Mtls

6470-3280 25.48$              Consumer Reports Books

6470-3280 14.49$              Consumer Reports Books

6470-3280 17.98$              Consumer Reports Books

6470-3280 25.48$              Consumer Reports Books

6470-3275 24.90$              Ellinas Multimedia AV Mtls

6470-3275 95.25$              Rolling Stones AV Mtls

6470-3280 75.40$              The American Radio Books

6470-3295 99.00$              Brinker Advisory Service Periodicals

6470-3275 59.98$              Fishflix.com AV Mtls

6470-3280 165.59$            PayPal Books

Total 4,492.94$      

Arlington Heights Memorial Library

American Express Card Summary

10/31/2016



November 15, 2016

CARDHOLDER ACCOUNT AMOUNT VENDOR  DESCRIPTION

M Kelly 6001-3272 $199.20 Francesca's Tavola OBOV- Book Discussion 10/10/16

6401-3202 $262.50 Sweet T's Program Events

M Schultz 6470-3275 $24.95 Night Sky Ventures Inc. AV Mtls

Total $486.65

Arlington Heights Memorial Library

Master Card Summary

10/31/2016



(Item 5) 
 

To: Board of Library Trustees 

From: Jason Kuhl 

Date: 11/8/2016 

Re: Action Plan for Increasing Library Use Among Residents in Southern 

Arlington Heights 

For nearly a year, a staff task force has been investigating how to increase 
library use among residents living in the southern part of the Village. They 
have identified three goals that we believe will have the greatest impact and 
offer the most sustainable growth: 

 Increasing the number of library cardholders in Southern Arlington 

Heights 

 Building connections with Southern Arlington Heights’ Hispanic 

community 

 Expanding AHML’s connection with Community Consolidated School 

District 59 

 

Attached, you will find a brief report which will be discussed in more detail 
at your meeting. 



At the Board of Library Trustees’ August 2015 committee of the whole meeting, the board discussed the 

low use of library services by residents of Southern Arlington Heights (south of Central Road). In October 

2015, our task force was charged with investigating how to increase library use by our Southern residents. 

 

Goals: Based on AHML’s 2015 Community Feedback Report, area resident Census and consumer 

marketing data, AHML staff observations and school district data, we recommend the following to increase 

library use by our village’s Southern residents: 

 Increasing the number of library cardholders in Southern Arlington Heights 

 Building connections with Southern Arlington Heights’ Hispanic community 

 Expanding AHML’s connection with Community Consolidated School District 59 

 

As part of the 2015 Community Feedback Report review, 49% of Southern village residents were library 

cardholders versus the village-wide rate of over 65%. Library use data analysis revealed that when 

Southern village residents are cardholders, they use the library just as much as their Northern (north of 

Palatine Road) counterparts. Also, Southern bookmobile visitors check out more items/visit than in any 

other region. These measurements suggest that simply increasing the number of Southern library 

cardholders will increase library use by our Southern residents. 

 

For some time, our Bookmobile and Outreach staff have been serving newly-arrived and first-generation 

residents to the U.S. in Southern Arlington Heights’ multi-unit complexes. Some of these residents 

participated in the 2015 Community Feedback survey (83 of 360 responses from Southern residents listed 

non-English language(s) spoken at home). As the Falcon Park bookmobile stop is AHML’s southernmost 

service point, we decided to compare the Census and projection data on ethnicity and language for the 

Falcon Park neighborhood with the village’s and with that of Southern Arlington Heights. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Looking at 2016A Census estimate and 2021 projection data for the village of Arlington Heights, our village’s 

Hispanic ethnicity is expected to grow 8.5%. In comparison, our Southern Arlington Heights area’s Hispanic 

ethnicity is expected to grow 3.0%, while the Falcon Park neighborhood’s Hispanic ethnicity is expected to 

grow 11%. From the same projection data, our village’s “Spanish or Spanish Creole language(s) spoken at 

home” is expected to grow 0.43%. Southern Arlington Heights’ Spanish language projection is expected to 

drop 1.95% (note: overall Southern Arlington Heights population is projected to drop by 1.0 %), while Falcon 

Park’s Spanish language projection is expected to grow 3.91%. Our village’s Hispanic community is one 

cultural group our staff is aware of from other sources but don’t observe using library services. AHML School 

Services and Outreach staff have long communicated AHML’s village-wide need for Hispanic services staff. 

 

Looking at the commonalities between Falcon Park’s card holders and non-cardholders, the 

neighborhood’s non-cardholder Census data shows them as a mix of new and established village residents 

with low-to-modest household incomes. Consumer marketing data places these cardholders and non-

cardholders in the same marketing segments, suggesting that AHML’s existing collections and services 

can appeal to non-cardholders’ needs and interests. 

Falcon Park Neighborhood 

6.0% 6.5% 7.0%

11.3%
12.1% 12.6%12.5%

13.5%
14.7%

0.0%

2.0%

4.0%

6.0%

8.0%

10.0%

12.0%

14.0%

16.0%

2010 2016A Estimate 2021 Projection

All AH South AH Falcon Park

Hispanic Population: Data & Projections 

 



 

During the 2015 Community Feedback survey’s focus groups, Southern Arlington Heights’ parents asked 

AHML to expand service to CCSD59. Juliette Low is the only CCSD59 school to receive AHML in-school 

services, since it is located in Arlington Heights. As of September 2016, Forest View Elementary enrollment 

has passed our 45% service minimum. Currently, between FV and Holmes, a total of 418 Arlington Heights-

resident students do not receive in-school AHML service and possibly do not have AHML library cards. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CCSD59’s Juliette Low versus District 25’s English language learner and economic statistics further 

illustrate how culturally-sensitive primary language outreach could connect with Southern resident families. 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Action items: We recommend the following to accomplish our recommended goals: 

 Library card sign-up tables year-round at village and CCSD59 events and locations throughout 

Southern Arlington Heights; Goal: Increase Southern Arlington Heights cardholder rate to 60% 

 Hire a bilingual library employee singularly charged with outreach to our village’s Hispanic families 

 Organize appropriate AHML staff to reach out to CCSD59 and other neighboring community 

organizations to increase public library access for CCSD59’s students and families 

51.2% 48.9% 53.2% 56.0%
66.5%

8.6% 7.6% 5.7% 4.4% 3.4%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

% Low Income

Juliette Low District 25

41.6% 44.9% 44.0%
50.0% 54.1%

6.2% 6.7% 7.2% 7.4% 8.7%

0%

20%

40%

60%

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

% English Learners

Juliette Low District 25

English learners are students whose English profic iency is 

not yet suffic ient to provide the students with the abi lity 

to successfully  part icipate & achieve in c lassroom sett ings .  

Low income is  the percentage of  students eligible to 

receive free or reduced-price lunches, l ive in substitute 

care, or whose families receive public a id.  

 

40.9% 41.4% 47.6%

59.1% 58.6% 52.4%

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

80%

90%

100%

Juliette Low Holmes Jr. High Forest View
Elementary

AH vs. Non-AH Residents in District 59

AH residents Non-AH residents

45% 



(Action Item 6) 
 

To: Board of Library Trustees 

From: Jason Kuhl 

Date: November 8, 2016 

Re: Illinois State Library FY2017 Public Library Per Capita Grant 

Attached please find a draft of AHML’s Illinois State Library FY2017 Public 
Library Per Capita Grant application. 

 

Suggested motion:  The Board of Library Trustees approves the Illinois 
State Library FY2017 Public Library Per Capita Grant application as 
presented. 

 



















(Action Item 7) 
 

To: Board of Library Trustees 

From: Jason Kuhl 

Date: 11/8/2016 

Re: Local Government Expense Control Act 

The Policy Committee will be discussing this agenda item at its meeting just 
prior to the board meeting on November 15. With the exception of minor 
wording changes, this memo is identical to the one that will be considered 
by the committee. 

The Local Government Expense Control Act (50 ILCS 150/1) is a new 
statute regulating reimbursement to trustees and employees for expenses 
incurred on library business. It applies to libraries and other units of local 
government. 

The key elements/requirement of the Act: 

 Adopt a Resolution regulating reimbursement of expenses; 

 Approve by roll call vote expenses of employees which exceed the 
maximum allowable reimbursement established by the Resolution; 

 Approve by roll call vote any reimbursement to a trustee; 

 Reimbursing expenses for entertainment is prohibited.  
Entertainment is defined as including by not limited to shows, 
amusements, theaters, circuses, sporting events, or any other place of 
public or private entertainment or amusement, unless ancillary to the 
purpose of the program or event. 

A copy of the Act is attached (attachment 1) along with the proposed 
resolution and supporting exhibits (attachment 2).  

The most significant change to our current procedures as a result of the Act 
will be the roll call vote required for any reimbursement to trustees. Until 
now, trustee reimbursements were handled just like those for staff—they 
were included on the check register and voted on as part of that approval 
process. Since the check register is approved by a roll call vote, this process 
technically complies with the Act. The spirit of the Act, however, is that 



these reimbursements be called out and voted on individually, so upon 
approval of the resolution they will be handled in that manner. 

We already have tight controls on reimbursements for travel in place, so 
there will be few additional changes to our day-to-day processes. Our 
reimbursement forms only needed the addition of the person’s job title to 
comply, and we have made that change. As part of the annual budgeting 
process we assemble a list of conferences with maximum amounts 
reimbursable to attendees that are based in part on the U.S. General Services 
Administration’s recommendations (see attachment 3 for the guidelines 
from 2016). The amounts indicated in Exhibit A of the Resolution 
(Permitted Travel Expenses) do not replace these more conservative 
guidelines distributed each year and in no way indicate the library will 
reimburse up to these amounts. They simply represent the threshold for 
which a roll call vote would be required for reimbursement to employees. 

To indicate compliance with the Act, POLICY 1.105—MEMBERSHIP IN 
PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS AND CONFERENCE 
ATTENDANCE has been edited slightly. The proposed edits are attached 
(attachment 4). 

 

 

Suggested motion: The Policy Committee recommends the Board of 
Library Trustees adopt Resolution 16-06—RESOLUTION 
REGULATING REIMBURSEMENT OF TRAVEL, MEAL AND 
LODGING EXPENSES as presented and approve the resulting 
changes to POLICY 1.105—MEMBERSHIP IN PROFESSIONAL 
ASSOCIATIONS AND CONFERENCE ATTENDANCE as 
indicated. 

 



11/7/2016 50 ILCS 150/  Local Government Travel Expense Control Act.

http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=3714&ChapterID=11&Print=True 1/2

Information maintained by the Legislative Reference Bureau
Updating the database of the Illinois Compiled Statutes (ILCS) is an ongoing process. Recent laws may not yet be included
in the ILCS database, but they are found on this site as Public Acts soon after they become law. For information concerning

the relationship between statutes and Public Acts, refer to the Guide.

Because the statute database is maintained primarily for legislative drafting purposes, statutory changes are sometimes
included in the statute database before they take effect. If the source note at the end of a Section of the statutes includes a
Public Act that has not yet taken effect, the version of the law that is currently in effect may have already been removed

from the database and you should refer to that Public Act to see the changes made to the current law.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT
(50 ILCS 150/) Local Government Travel Expense Control Act.

(50 ILCS 150/1)
(This  Section  may  contain  text  from  a  Public  Act  with  a

delayed effective date )
Sec.  1.  Short  title.  This  Act  may  be  cited  as  the  Local

Government Travel Expense Control Act.
(Source: P.A. 99604, eff. 1117.)

(50 ILCS 150/5)
(This  Section  may  contain  text  from  a  Public  Act  with  a

delayed effective date )
Sec. 5. Definitions.  As used in this Act:
"Entertainment"  includes,  but  is  not  limited  to,  shows,

amusements,  theaters,  circuses,  sporting  events,  or any  other
place  of public  or private  entertainment  or amusement,  unless
ancillary to the purpose of the program or event.

"Local  public  agency"  means  a  school  district,  community
college  district,  or  unit  of  local  government  other  than  a
home rule unit.

"Travel"  means  any  expenditure  directly  incident  to
official  travel  by  employees  and  officers  of  a  local  public
agency  or  by  wards  or  charges  of  a  local  public  agency
involving  reimbursement  to  travelers  or  direct  payment  to
private agencies providing  transportation  or related services.
(Source: P.A. 99604, eff. 1117.)

(50 ILCS 150/10)
(This  Section  may  contain  text  from  a  Public  Act  with  a

delayed effective date )
Sec.  10.  Regulation  of  travel  expenses.  All  local  public

agencies  shall,  by  resolution  or  ordinance,  regulate  the
reimbursement  of  all  travel,  meal,  and  lodging  expenses  of
officers and employees,  including, but not limited to: (1) the
types of official business for which travel, meal, and lodging
expenses  are  allowed;  (2)  maximum allowable  reimbursement  for
travel,  meal,  and  lodging  expenses;  and  (3)  a  standardized
form  for  submission  of  travel,  meal,  and  lodging  expenses
supported  by the  minimum  documentation  required  under  Section
20  of  this  Act.  The  regulations  may  allow  for  approval  of
expenses  that  exceed  the  maximum  allowable  travel,  meal,  or
lodging  expenses  because  of  emergency  or  other  extraordinary
circumstances.  On and after  180 days  after  the effective  date
of this Act of the 99th General  Assembly,  no travel,  meal, or
lodging  expense  shall  be  approved  or  paid  by  a  local  public
agency  unless  regulations  have  been  adopted  under  this
Section.
(Source: P.A. 99604, eff. 1117.)

(Attachment 1)

http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/publicacts/default.asp
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/using.asp


11/7/2016 50 ILCS 150/  Local Government Travel Expense Control Act.

http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs3.asp?ActID=3714&ChapterID=11&Print=True 2/2

    (50 ILCS 150/15)  
    (This  Section  may  contain  text  from  a  Public  Act  with  a
delayed effective date ) 
    Sec.  15. Approval  of expenses.  On  or  after  60  days  after
the  effective  date  of  this  Act  of  the  99th  General  Assembly,
expenses for travel, meals, and lodging of: (1) any officer or
employee  that  exceeds  the  maximum  allowed  under  the
regulations  adopted  under  Section  10  of  this  Act;  or  (2)  any
member  of the governing  board  or corporate  authorities  of the
local public agency, may only be approved by roll call vote at
an  open  meeting  of  the  governing  board  or  corporate
authorities of the local public agency.  
(Source: P.A. 99604, eff. 1117.)

    (50 ILCS 150/20)  
    (This  Section  may  contain  text  from  a  Public  Act  with  a
delayed effective date ) 
    Sec. 20. Documentation  of expenses.  Before  an expense for
travel,  meals,  or lodging  may be approved  under  Section  15 of
this  Act,  the  following  minimum  documentation  must  first  be
submitted,  in  writing,  to  the  governing  board  or  corporate
authorities:
        (1) an estimate of the cost of travel, meals, or

    
lodging if expenses have not been incurred or a receipt of
the cost of the travel,  meals,  or lodging  if the expenses
have already been incurred;

        (2) the name of the individual who received or is
    requesting the travel, meal, or lodging expense;
        (3) the job title or office of the individual who

    
received  or  is  requesting  the  travel,  meal,  or  lodging
expense; and

        (4) the date or dates and nature of the official

    
business in which the travel, meal, or lodging expense was
or will be expended.

All documents  and information  submitted  under this Section are
public  records  subject  to  disclosure  under  the  Freedom  of
Information Act.  
(Source: P.A. 99604, eff. 1117.)

    (50 ILCS 150/25)  
    (This  Section  may  contain  text  from  a  Public  Act  with  a
delayed effective date ) 
        Sec.  25.  Entertainment  expenses.  No  local  public  agency
may reimburse  any governing  board member, employee,  or officer
for any entertainment expense.  
(Source: P.A. 99604, eff. 1117.)



(Attachment 2) 
 

Arlington Heights Memorial Library 

11/15/16 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-06 

 

RESOLUTION REGULATING REIMBURSEMENT OF  

TRAVEL, MEAL AND LODGING EXPENSES 

 

Recitals and Definitions 

 

1. Requirement.  This Resolution is adopted by the Board of Library Trustees of the 

Arlington Heights Memorial Library responsive to the requirements of The Local 

Government Travel Expense Control Act (the Act), 50 ILCS 150/1. 

 

2. Reimbursable Rates. The Library shall reimburse permitted expenses as set forth on the 

attached Exhibit A.  

 

3. Reimbursement Request Form. The Library shall only approve reimbursement of 

expenses if a Library Trustee or employee submits expenses on the Library’s Expense 

Report (for amounts over $50) or Petty Cash Reimbursement Form (for amounts $50 and 

under). (Exhibits B and C).  

 

4. Entertainment Expenses. The Library shall not reimburse any Library Trustee or 

employee for any entertainment expense unless such expense is ancillary to the purpose of 

the program or event. 

 

5. Board Approval of Certain Reimbursable Expenses. The following expenses for travel, 

meals, and lodging may be approved only by a roll call vote at an open meeting of the 

Board of Library Trustees: 

 

a. Any reimbursable expenses of an employee that exceeds the maximum allowed;   

 

b. Any reimbursable expense of a Library Trustee. 

 

6. Forms.  The Executive Director is authorized to develop such additional forms as the 

Executive Director deems helpful consistent with this Resolution and the Act. 

 

7. Conflict. All resolutions or part of resolutions conflicting with any provision of this 

Resolution be and the same are repealed.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



(Attachment 2) 
 

8. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its adoption. 

 

 

Adopted November 15, 2016, pursuant to a roll call vote as follows: 

 

 AYES:          

 

 NAYS:  ______________________________________________                                                                                                                

 

 ABSENT:          ______________________________________________                                                                                    

 

 

               

      Debbie Smart, President 

Board of Library Trustees of the  

Arlington Heights Memorial Library 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST:   

 

 

 

      

Deborah A Nelson 

Vice President/Secretary 

Board of Library Trustees of the  

Arlington Heights Memorial Library  

 
    



(Attachment 2) 
 

 

EXHIBIT A--Permitted Travel Expenses 

Among the requirements of The Local Government Travel Expense Control Act (The Act), 50 ILCS 150/1 

is the establishment of a schedule of expenses permitted to be reimbursed to staff for travel, including 

transportation, meals, and lodging which are reasonably necessary for library business.  Examples of 

expenses which may be reimbursed include expenses for conferences, meetings, or any other events or 

programs consistent with the library’s mission. 

In accordance with The Act, the amounts in this policy represent the maximum allowable 

reimbursement to staff without a roll call vote of the Board of Library Trustees.  The actual amount 

reimbursable for each event will vary based upon its location and the availability of funds for 

reimbursement.  Also in accordance with The Act, no expense will be reimbursable to trustees without a 

roll call vote of the Board of Library Trustees. 

The maximum reimbursable amounts are as follows: 

 

Maximum Reimbursable Rate for Lodging 

 Lodging will be reimbursed at the actual reasonable rate for a single occupancy standard room 

to a maximum of $425 per night.   

 No expenses for lodging in Cook, DuPage, Kane, Lake, McHenry, and Will counties in Illinois will 

be reimbursed.   

 Reimbursement for lodging for single-day events within a 140-mile radius of Arlington Heights 

will be at the discretion of the Executive Director.   

 Only the cost of the room and associated taxes and fees will be reimbursed.   

 Examples of charges that will not be reimbursed are in-room entertainment such as pay-per-

view movies, internet access, and any damages that are assessed.   

 Meals charged to the room will be counted against the maximum reimbursable rate for meals as 

outlined below.   

 

Maximum Reimbursable Rates for Transportation 

Air Travel Lowest reasonable rate (coach)  

Auto IRS standard mileage rate at time of travel 

Baggage (Air Travel) Actual reasonable rate for one standard-sized piece of luggage 
per flight. 

Rental Car Lowest reasonable rate (midsize vehicle) 

Rail or Bus Lowest reasonable rate (cost shall not exceed that of airfare) 

Taxi, Shuttle, Rideshare, or Public 
Transportation 

Actual reasonable rate plus applicable gratuity 

Parking (at Venue) Actual reasonable rate for self-park at venue (conference 
center, hotel, etc.).  

Parking (at Airport) Actual reasonable rate (total cost of driving including mileage, 
tolls, and parking shall not exceed that of taxi)  

Tolls Actual reasonable rate 



(Attachment 2) 
 

 

Maximum Reimbursable Rate for Meals 

Actual costs for meals and gratuity will be reimbursed up to a maximum average of $85 per day for the 

duration of the event.  Purchases of alcoholic beverages will not be reimbursed.   

 

Maximum Reimbursable Rate for Registration 

Registration fees for conferences, pre-conferences, and fee-based events associated with conferences 

are reimbursed at the early-bird member rate (if applicable).  Registration for other events is 

reimbursable at the lowest reasonable rate.   

 

 

   

 

 

 



AHML Expense Report

NAME JOB TITLE DATE: 

Expenses for

DAY
Airport 

Transport Lodging # of Miles
Calculated 
Allowance Meals

Describe     
(Tips, Taxis, etc.) Amount

DAILY 
TOTAL

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Totals 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Account Code: Supervisor Signature

0.000.00

Date

Date

Date

THU

0.00 0.000.00 0.00

0.00

0.00 0.000.00

SUN

MON

0.00

0.00

List Conference and Where Held (City/State )

0.00
Date

0.00

0.00

WED

FRI

TUE

0.00 0.00

SAT

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00

0.00

Miscellaneous ExpensesCar Allowance

0.00 0.00 0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00

0.00

0.00 0.000.00 0.00

0.00

0.00 0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

Attach all receipts.

(Attachment 2) 
(Exhibit B)



11/14/2014 cb 

 Petty Cash Reimbursement Form 

1. Complete form with required approvals.

2. Attach receipts to form with paperclip.

3. Bring to Finance Department for reimbursement.

Submitted by: Date: 

Job Title: 

Account: Date of Purchase: 

Purpose: Amount: 

Account: Date of Purchase: 

Purpose: Amount: 

Account: Date of Purchase: 

Purpose: Amount: 

Approved by: Date: Total: 

Finance Dept.: Received by: Date: 

(Attachment 2)
(Exhibit C)



TRAVEL EXPENSES FOR MAJOR CONFERENCES
For Budget Preparation CY 2016

June 9, 2015

Guidelines

 Do not add the 1% inflation on to your Travel & Training budget. Use the actual travel costs provided
here.

 An Add-on is needed for all requests for staff to attend major conferences.

 The library pays only the cost of “Early Bird Registration” (if registration doesn’t make the cut-off
for “early bird”, the employee pays the difference unless there are special circumstances).

 Meal functions included in registration are considered part of the per diem.

 The per diem rate for local conferences is $71, except for Reaching Forward. The per diem rates for
out-of-town conferences are as noted. The per diem rate covers the cost of food, tips, baggage fees,
etc. Per diem rates indicate maximum amounts. Reimbursements are for actual expenses up to the per
diem amount.

 Airport transportation to and from the airports is reimbursable, up to $200 per conference, and should
be budgeted in addition to the per diem.

 All airfare is based on departure from O’Hare on United Airlines. American prices are usually very
similar.

 First Class Travel charges a $25 service charge per ticket, which is not included in the quotes. Price
estimates for CY 2016 were provided by Rita at First Class Travel, 847-392-6320.

(Attachment 3)



MAJOR CONFERENCES – CY 2016

January 2016
American Library Association (ALA) Midwinter Conf. 2016, January 8 – 12, Boston, MA (Boston

Convention and Exhibition Center)
Registration $190 (Estimate)
Airfare $250 + $25 (service charge) = $275
Airport Transportation $200
Per Diem $71
Lodging $313 per night @ 3 nights = $939

Opening Minds 2016, January 20 – 23, Chicago, IL (Hyatt Regency at McCormick Place, 2233 South
Martin Luther King Drive, Chicago, IL 60616)

Registration $125
Transportation $35 per day (Estimated mileage – 60 miles at $0.575 = $35 per day or public

transportation)
Parking $19
Per Diem $71

March 2016
SXSWedu 2016, March 4 – 13 or 11 – 20, Austin, TX (Hilton Austin Downtown, 500 East 4th Street)
Registration $825 (Estimate)
Airfare $475 + $25 (service charge) = $500
Airport Transportation $200
Per Diem $71
Lodging $355 per night @ 3 nights = $1,065

Computers in Libraries 2016, March 8 – 10, Washington, DC (Hilton Washington, 1919 Connecticut Ave.,
NW)

Registration $489 (Estimate)
Airfare $460 + $25 (service charge) = $485
Airport Transportation $200
Per Diem $71
Lodging $289 per night @ 3 nights = $867

Love is Murder Mystery Conference 2016, March 11 – 13, Rosemont, IL (The Embassy Suites, 5500
North River Road)

Registration $279
Transportation $19 per day (Estimated mileage – 23 miles at $0.575 = $14 or public

transportation)
Parking $5 per day
Per Diem $71



Innovative Users Group (IUG) Conference 2016, March 15 – 18, San Francisco, CA (Hilton Union
Square, 333 O'Farrell Street)

Registration $300 (Estimate)
Airfare $530 + $25 (service charge) = $555
Airport Transportation $200
Per Diem $71
Lodging $249 per night @ 3 nights = $747

Library Technology Conference 2016, March 16 – 17, St. Paul, MN
Registration $140 (Estimate)
Airfare $250 + $25 (service charge) = $275
Airport Transportation $200
Per Diem $71
Lodging $108 per night @ 2 nights = $216

Aging in America Conference 2016, March 20 – 24, Washington, DC
Registration $590 (Estimate)
Airfare $460+ $25 (service charge) = $485
Airport Transportation $200
Per Diem $71
Lodging $239 per night @ 3 nights = $717

April 2016
Electronic Resources & Libraries Conference 2016, April 3 – 6, Austin, TX (AT&T Executive Education

& Conference Center, University of Texas, Austin Campus, 1900 University Ave.)
Registration $385 (Estimate)
Airfare $475 + $25 (service charge) = $500
Airport Transportation $200
Per Diem $71
Lodging $355 per night @ 3 nights = $1,065

Public Library Association (PLA) 2016, April 5 – 9, Denver, CO (Colorado Convention Center)
Registration: $255
Airfare $360 + $25 (service charge) = $385
Airport Transportation $200
Per Diem $66
Lodging $158 per night @ 3 nights = $474

Commission on Adult Basic Education (COABE) 2016, April 11 – 13, Dallas, TX (Sheraton Hotel in
downtown Dallas

Registration $420
Airfare $225 + $25 (service charge) = $250
Airport Transportation $200
Per Diem $71
Lodging $189 per night @ 3 nights = $567



May 2016
InterActivity Conference 2016, May 5 – 7, Norwalk, CT
Registration $500 (Estimate)
Airfare $1,285 + $25 (service charge) = $1,310
Airport Transportation $200
Per Diem $71
Lodging $129 per night @ 3 nights = $387

Reaching Forward 2016, May 6, Rosemont, IL (Donald E. Stephens Convention Center, 5555 North River
Road)

Registration $140 (Estimate)
Transportation $32 (Estimated mileage – 32 miles @ $0.575 = $19 or public transportation)
Parking $13

BookExpo America 2016, May 12 – 14, Chicago, IL (McCormick Place)
Registration $125 (Estimate)
Transportation $56 per day (Estimated mileage – 60 miles at $0.575 = $35 or public

transportation)
Parking $21 per day parking
Per Diem $71

Chicago Northside Mini Maker Faire 2016, May, Chicago, IL, (Carl Schurz High School, 3601 North
Milwaukee Avenue)

Registration $10 (Estimate)
Transportation $23 per day (Estimated mileage – 39 miles @ $0.575 = $23 or public

transportation)
Per Diem $71

June 2016
Digital Media and Learning (DML) 2016, June (TBD), Los Angeles, CA (TBD)
Registration: $150 (Estimate)
Airfare $316 + $25 (service charge) = $341
Airport Transportation $200
Per Diem $71
Lodging $199 per night @ 3 nights = $597

American Library Association Conference (ALA) 2016, June 23 – 26, Orlando, FL (Orange County
Convention Center)

Registration $255 (Estimate)
Airfare $300 + $25 (service charge) = $325
Airport Transportation $200
Per Diem $56
Lodging $180 per night @ 3 nights = $540



Printers Row Lit Fest 2016, June, Chicago, IL (corner of Congress and Dearborn)
Registration $30 (Estimate)
Transportation $32 per day (Estimated mileage – 54 miles @ $0.575 = $32 or public

transportation)
Parking $10
Per Diem $71

Games, Learning, Society Conference 2016, June, Madison, WI (UW Memorial Union, 800 Langdon
Street)

Registration $450 (Estimate)
Transportation Estimated mileage 254 miles @ $0.575 = $147
Parking $10 per day
Per Diem $56
Lodging $149 per night @ 2 nights = $298

WILIUG 2016 (June or July), TBD Grayslake, IL, Palos Hills, IL, Milwaukee, WI or Waukesha, WI
Registration $40 (Estimate)
Transportation $23 - $105 (Estimated mileage 40 - 182 miles @ $0.575)
Parking $5
Per Diem $56 - 71

August 2016
An Event Apart, August or September TBD, Chicago, IL (Westin Chicago River North, 320 North

Dearborn Street)
Registration $995 (Estimate)
Transportation $31 (Estimated mileage – 53 miles @ $0.575 = $31 or public transportation)
Parking $52
Per Diem $71

September 2016
ALSC National Institute, September 15 – 17, Charlotte, NC
Registration $175 (Estimate)
Airfare $195 + $25 (service charge) = $220
Airport Transportation $200
Per Diem $51
Lodging $199 per night @ 3 nights = $597

October 2016
Illinois Library Association (ILA) 2016, October 18 – 20, Chicago, Illinois (Donald E. Stephens

Convention Center, 5555 North River Road)
Registration $200 (Estimate)
Transportation $32 (Estimated mileage – 32 miles @ $0.575 = $19 or public transportation)
Parking $13
Per Diem $71



ISLMA (Illinois School Library Media Association) 2016, Mid-October, Tinley Park, IL
Registration $165 (Estimate)
Transportation $65 (Estimated mileage – 112 miles @ $0.575 = $65 or public transportation)
Per Diem $71

ABOS (Association of Bookmobile and Outreach Services) October, Cincinnati or Columbus, Ohio TBD
Registration $250 (Estimate)
Airfare $706 or $217
Airport Transportation $200
Per Diem $56
Lodging $105 or $160 per night @ 3 nights = $315 or $480

YALSA (YA Symposium) 2016, November 7 – 8, Louisville or Pittsburg TBD
Registration $245 (Estimate)
Airfare $175 + $25 (service charge) = $200 or $214 + $25 (service charge) = $239
Airport Transportation $200
Per Diem $61 or $71
Lodging $180 or $280 per night @ 2 nights = $360 or $560

All conferences are approved for a maximum of three nights unless authorized by your director.
Please be responsible with all expenses.
Per Diem rates from gsa.gov



(Attachment 4) 

Policy Manual 

1.105 

06/17/2014 

Replaces 09/20/2005 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

1.105 MEMBERSHIP IN PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATIONS AND 

CONFERENCE ATTENDANCE 

TRUSTEES: 

 

Every library trustee should be a member of the Illinois Library Association (ILA), the American Library 

Association (ALA) and the divisions of ALA which are of interest to the board.  The library will make payment 

of these dues for the members with approval by the Board of Library Trustees. 

 

At least once during each term of office, every library board member should attend one of the following: an 

annual conference of the American Library Association, a Public Library Association national conference, or an 

Illinois Library Association conference.  Expenses for the trip should be included in the library budget, and the 

privilege should be rotated among board members from year to year, giving all a part in the educational benefits 

of the national meetings. 

 

Board members are also encouraged to participate in other state and regional conferences and workshops as 

appropriate and costs associated with attendance may be covered in an amount approved by the board.  A roll 

call vote of the board is required for any reimbursement of travel expenses for trustees in accordance with 

the Local Government Travel Expense Control Act, 50 ILCS 150/1 

 

STAFF: 

 

Dues for membership in ILA, ALA, and up to two ALA divisions may be paid by the library if approved in 

advance by the executive director.  In most circumstances, one of those divisions should be the Public Library 

Association (PLA) and the second should be the division most applicable to the individual staff member’s 

position with the library. 

 

Whenever possible, time with pay is allowed to staff members to attend library conferences and other 

professional meetings.  The library may contribute to the expenses of officially designated representatives.  

Reimbursement of travel expenses will be made in accordance with the Local Government Travel Expense 

Control Act, 50 ILCS 150/1.   Insofar as possible, those who take an active part in the meetings or are involved 

in presenting a program or the organization of committee work will be given priority.  Requests for permission 

to attend professional library meetings and conferences should be made to the appropriate supervisor with final 

approval made by the executive director. 



(Action Item 8) 
 

To: Board of Library Trustees 

From: Jason Kuhl 

Date: 11/8/2016 

Re: Strategic Planning Committee Members 

The Policy Committee will be discussing this agenda item at its meeting just 
prior to the board meeting on November 15. With the exception of minor 
wording changes, this memo is identical to the one that will be considered 
by the committee. 

With recent changes to our administrative staff structure, we have taken a 
closer look at the composition of the Strategic Planning Committee, 
particularly with respect to the role of staff as voting members. While other 
committees often have staff present in an advisory capacity (the Facilities 
Manager at Building Committee meetings, for example), no other committee 
has staff as voting members. For several reasons that we will discuss at your 
meeting, it is our recommendation that staff be removed as voting parts of 
the committee. 

Committee composition is not part of library policy—the only references to 
it are with respect to the president’s role in appointing committee members 
(Policy 1.101 Article II, Section 3 and Article IV, Section 3). However, it 
would be beneficial to discuss this change before taking any action, and the 
Policy Committee is an appropriate place to begin.     

 



 

 

Executive Director’s Report 
November 2016 

 
Facilities and Operations  

 
Circulation News 
 

 Circulation was down 3.9% compared to last October, and down 3.3% for the fiscal 
year to date. 
 

 Our electronic items continued to trend upward with 22,848 checked out in 
October, representing 12.2% of all checkouts for the month. Use of Tumblebooks 
again drove this surge with 12,136 checkouts.  
 

 Promotion, collection location, and arrangement help drive circulation. Here are 
some recent examples: 
 

o Adult book discussion kit circulation was at a year high of 1,147. This was a 
24.1% increase over October 2015. This could be due in part to one of the 
Dunton displays featuring book discussion titles. 
 

o The circulation of Kids’ World holiday items was down 18% from last October 
and down 3.8% for the FYTD. The book collection was shifted and split in half 
at the end of 2015, with only the upcoming holiday books displayed near the 
KW picture books. We are doing this holiday collection shift twice a year. 
Although the other holiday books are still available they are in a lower traffic 
area. We’ll keep an eye on this collection during the upcoming busy holiday 
season and evaluate this process in 2017. 
 

o Circulation of World Language books for kids was up 6.4% from last October. 
We recently reorganized the collection, which makes it more intuitive for 
customers to find items. 
 

 Although resident library cards issued this October were down 23.6% from last year, 
the decline was due to more District 25 cards issued in October of 2015. On the 
same note, AH cards issued in September of 2016 were higher than September of 
2015 because we processed more District 25 cards this September than last year. 
 
 



 

 

Programs 

 
One Book, One Village 
Throughout September and October, One Book, One Village programs have invited 
customers to celebrate creativity and genius in a variety of engaging ways. Of note were 
presentations and performers centered around geniuses who have had tremendous impact 
on their fields - Julia Child, Harry Houdini and Nikola Tesla. Some programs invited 
customers to indulge their senses and get social while focusing on the book’s elements of 
travel and exploration. Most well-received were: Pop-Up Genius Coffee Bar, presented in 
partnership with Intelligentsia Coffee, where library visitors learned why place is so 
important in the production of coffee and tasted blends from different regions. A Wine 
Tasting at local Vintages provided a similar experience for residents 21+ who wanted to 
learn more about wine and place.  Eric Weiner refers to both coffee and wine as he weaves 
his tale of finding genius where it manifests in The Geography of Genius. 
 
The OBOV exhibit, Building da Vinci, the centerpiece is a custom built catapult designed by 
da Vinci, has been a hit.  Though never built in his time, two local engineers took on the 
challenge to produce a working catapult from the simple, famous drawing. They visited on 
three occasions, offering customers of all-ages a chance to “Try-It.” More than 400 
customers tested its launching capabilities, guessing which of the soft ammunition items 
(marshmallows, ping pong balls, rubber duckies, foam pumpkins, etc) would go farthest. 
Siblings challenged one another, parents joined their kids, and nearby adults flocked to 
watch the flurry of activity pop-up on Main Street, anxious to talk to the builders about the 
woodwork or craftsmanship of the model. 
 
AHML facilitated national radio hosts, Jim DeRogatis and Greg Kot, as they created a live 
version of their WBEZ program Sound Opinions centered around the concept of Eric 
Weiner’s search for genius in the book.  Punk Rock 1977: The Sound of Genius attracted 
155 eager music fans to Metropolis Performing Arts Center for an evening with Jim and 
Greg. The hosts shared why punk music flourished in a certain time, 1977, and was 
concentrated in specific places, New York and London. 
 
On November 3, Eric Weiner visited Arlington Heights with two events during his day. 130 
students and teachers welcomed him to Rolling Meadows High School where he discussed 
the history of identifying and recognizing geniuses and what elements of genius can be 
fostered in today's world - particularly how schools succeed in fostering this. He 
complimented the student’s questions, noting "Wow. These are really good questions, 
better than most older people's!"  At the library's An Evening with Eric Weiner, 180 
customers welcomed the author who engaged in an interview-style program facilitated by 
our community guest, Mary Luckritz of Rolling Meadows High School. Her questions 



 

 

with those of members of the audience painted a broader picture of Eric as a writer and 
foreign correspondent, while also focusing on central ideas of The Geography of 
Genius. Dozens of attendees waited to have books signed by the author who spent time 
with each of them. While in line, attendees shared praise for the book selection, most 
having read along with OBOV all three years. Some remarked that they would not have 
picked it up on their own and are so glad they did. Overall, customers are anxious to see 
what we choose for next year's community read telling us the spirit of the initiative is really 
resonating with Arlington Heights readers and teachers.  
 
Halloween Fun! 
On October 26, we held Halloween Fun in Kids’ World for 352 customers who engaged in a 
variety of games and crafts. This is the fourth year we have hosted this program, with an 
increase in attendance each year. It always serves to remind us how the AHML library users 
like to come together as community in this building.  
 
 

     
 
Senior Speed Dating 
AHML collaborated with the Arlington Heights Senior Center to plan and host the first ever 
speed dating event for those 70 and up at the Senior Center. The eighteen men and women 
who participated each had an opportunity to share five minutes of private conversation 
with nine dates. To make a match, both the man and woman had to select one another. A 
thank you letter with match results were mailed to all participants following the 
event.  Attendees shared that it was a wonderful, fun experience.  Several participants said 
that it was great to have a chance to take a risk and try something new. By a show of hands 



 

 

at the end of the dates, everyone indicated they would try it again. One resident said “I had 
a great time.  It was really exciting to be a part of this.” 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 



 

 

In the Community 

 

Tech Tuesdays 
On Tuesday, October 25, we visited Buffalo Grove High School for their inaugural Tech 
Tuesday. This also marked our first visit to BGHS for high school outreach. We engaged 65 
teens in the library with the Hub’s STEM Kits. BGHS librarian Glenn Gotrik asked if we would 
like to continue this monthly outreach to support Tech Tuesdays as we do at Hersey.  
 

 
 

Staff Recognition 

 

  

Crosman Memorial Award 
As mentioned in an earlier report, 
Trixie Dantis was presented with the 
Crosman Memorial Award at the 
Illinois Library Association Annual 
Conference in October. 

 



Oct 2016 Oct 2015
% change 

from last Oct

Jan 2016-      

Oct 2016

Jan 2015-       

Oct 2015

% change 

from last YTD

Total circulation 189,592 197,307 -4% 1,916,646 1,982,448 -3%

Adult circulation 109,972 112,837 -3% 1,150,312 1,178,205 -2%

Teen circulation 2,134 2,462 -13% 26,719 27,660 -3%

Children circulation 77,486 82,008 -6% 739,615 776,583 -5%

Print book circulation 94,115 100,025 -6% 945,315 977,655 -3%

Audiovisual circulation 64,362 70,744 -9% 707,747 773,539 -9%

Downloadables circulation 22,848 17,290 32% 170,924 130,395 31%
Self-check as % of main floor circ 64% 63% 1% 64% 63% 1%

Circulation to reciprocal borrowers 10,570 8,526 24% 94,819 82,582 15%

ILLs borrowed for our customers 367 533 -31% 4,829 5,438 -11%

ILLS lent to other libraries 700 751 -7% 7,609 8,132 -6%

Resident cards issued 340 445 -24% 4,374 4,421 -1%

Reciprocal cards registered 177 208 -15% 1,962 1,924 2%

Reference questions 14,848 15,374 -3% 155,266 150,063 3%

Program attendance 8,783 9,872 -11% 78,481 79,941 -2%

First-time attendees at programs 213 275 -23% 2,473 2,380 4%
% of target audience attending 64% 70% -6% 67% 71% -4%
% of progs meeting target audience # 86% 79% 7% 82% 79% 3%

Public computer use 11,055 10,375 7% 109,046 106,609 2%

Website visits 99,279 118,272 -16% 1,060,808 1,234,159 -14%

In-person visitors 85,069 82,959 3% 874,171 852,324 3%
Marketplace - % of adult coll / of circ 8% / 35% 8% / 33% 0% / 2% 8% / 34% 8% / 30% 0% / 4%
Kids' Mktplace - % of KW coll / of circ 5% / 15% 5% / 13% 0% / 2% 5% / 15% 5% / 13% 0% / 2%

Volunteer hours 2,409 2,507 -4% 25,375 24,413 4%

AHML - DASHBOARD - OCTOBER 2016



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 



 

ALA President Julie Todaro releases statement 
on Libraries, the Association, Diversity and 
Inclusion 

 Subscribe 

For Immediate Release 
Tue, 11/15/2016 

Contact: 

Macey Morales 
Deputy Director 
Public Awareness Office 
American Library Association 
mmorales@ala.org 

CHICAGO – Today American Library Association President Julie Todaro released the following statement regarding the 
invaluable role libraries  and librarians will play within their communities as many search for common ground after the 
election.  

"After a contentious campaign season filled with divisive rhetoric, we are now hearing from our members and in the news 
media about incidents of bigotry and harassment within our communities.  From children acting out in schools to adults 
participating in violent acts, it is clear that our nation is struggling in the wake of this election. 

"During times like these, our nation’s 120,000 public, academic, school and special libraries are invaluable allies inspiring 
understanding and community healing. Libraries provide a safe place for individuals of all ages and backgrounds and for 
difficult discussions on social issues.  Our nation’s libraries serve all community members, including people of color, 
immigrants, people with disabilities, and the most vulnerable in our communities, offering services and educational 
resources that transform communities, open minds and promote inclusion and diversity.   

"As an association representing these libraries, librarians and library workers, ALA believes that the struggle against 
racism, prejudice, stereotyping, and discrimination is central to our mission. As we have throughout our 140 year-long 
history, we will continue to support efforts to abolish intolerance and cultural invisibility, stand up for all the members of the 
communities we serve, and promote understanding and inclusion through our work." 

 
50 E Huron St., Chicago IL 60611 | 1.800.545.2433 

  

http://www.ala.org/news/feed/press-releases/rss.xml
mailto:mmorales@ala.org
http://www.ala.org/news/
http://www.ala.org/news/feed/press-releases/rss.xml


 

 

PLA President Felton Thomas Jr. releases 
statement on public libraries and inclusiveness 

 Subscribe 

For Immediate Release 
Tue, 11/15/2016 

Contact: 

Kara O'Keefe 
Manager, Marketing and Membership 
Public Library Association (PLA) 
kokeefe@ala.org 

CHICAGO – Public Library Association (PLA) President Felton Thomas Jr. released the following statement in response 
to the divisive election season and the post-election challenges our communities face. This message is in support of 
the statement released earlier today by the American Library Association. 

“Inclusiveness is a core value of the Public Library Association. The public library has an unparalleled ability to bring 
people and knowledge together, especially in times of uncertainty and division. We are places of learning, free inquiry and 
free speech for people of all ages and backgrounds. 

As such, our nation’s public libraries stand as a bulwark to intolerance and a beacon of opportunity. We are committed to 
ensuring a safe place for all that reflects and serves the diversity of our nation in our collections, programs and services. 
With thousands of public libraries in towns and neighborhoods across the country, we invite community conversations and 
action that further understanding and address local needs.” 

PLA will work to develop resources that public libraries can use to support these critical conversations in their 
communities. Members will be apprised of all future developments as they become available.  

The Public Library Association (PLA) is the largest association dedicated to supporting the unique and evolving needs of 
public library professionals. Founded in 1944, PLA serves nearly 9,000 members in public libraries large and small in 
communities across the United States and Canada, with a growing presence around the world. PLA strives to help its 
members shape the essential institution of public libraries by serving as an indispensable ally for public library leaders. 
For more information about PLA, contact the PLA office at 1 (800) 545-2433, ext.5PLA, or visit www.pla.org.   

 
50 E Huron St., Chicago IL 60611 | 1.800.545.2433 

 

 

http://www.ala.org/news/feed/press-releases/rss.xml
mailto:kokeefe@ala.org
http://www.ala.org/news/press-releases/2016/11/ala-president-julie-todaro-releases-statement-libraries-association-diversity
http://www.ala.org/pla/
http://www.pla.org/
http://www.ala.org/news/
http://www.ala.org/news/feed/press-releases/rss.xml

	111516 Board Agenda
	Item 1 10.15.16 Minutes joint meeting with Library and AHPD
	Item 2 10-25-16 Board Meeting Minutes
	Item 3 Financial Report ended October 31, 2016
	Item 4 Check Register ended October 31 2016
	Check Register Summary Action Item 4 Nov 2016 meeting
	Check Register
	Special Funds Reimbursement JM
	American Express Summary 2016 JM
	MasterCard Summary 2016 JM

	Item 5 Staff Presentation Increasing Library Use Among Residents Living in the Southern Part of AH
	South Cover memo
	South Report

	Item 6 FY2017 Per Capita Grant Application
	Per Capita memo
	Per Capita Scan
	Per Capita additional pages scan

	Item 7 Local Government Expense Control Act
	Act memo
	Attachment 1 50 ILCS 150_  Local Government Travel Expense Control Act_
	Attachment 2 Resolution 16-06
	Attachment 2 Exhibit A Permitted Travel Expenses
	Attachment 2 Exhibit B AHML expense report form
	Attachment 2 Exhibit C AHML Petty Cash Reimbursement Form
	Attachment 3 CY2016TRAVELEXPENSESFORMAJORCONFERENCES
	Attachment 4 Policy 1.105

	Item 8 Strategic Planning Committee Members
	Directors Report November 2016
	Oct2016
	Dashboard Charts 2
	Distributed at table ALA releases statements

